MINUTES OF MEETING Overview and Scrutiny Committee HELD ON Tuesday, 12th January, 2021, 19:00

PRESENT:

Councillors: Peray Ahmet (Chair), Pippa Connor (Vice-Chair), Erdal Dogan, Ruth Gordon, Khaled Moyeed

Cooptees: KanuPriya Jhunjhunwala, Anita Jakhu, Yvonne Denny, Lourdes Keever

ALSO ATTENDING: CIIr Seema Chandwani, CIIr Matt White and CIIr Zena Brabazon

8. FILMING AT MEETINGS

The Chair referred Members present to agenda item 1 regarding filming at the meeting and Members noted the information contained therein.

9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

10. URGENT BUSINESS

None.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

12. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS

None.

13. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting on 23rd November were agreed as a correct record.

14. MINUTES OF SCRUTINY PANEL MEETINGS

RESOLVED



The minutes of the following Scrutiny Panels were received and noted and any recommendations contained within were approved:

Housing and Regeneration – 19th November 2020 Environment and Community Safety - 3 November 2020 Children and Young People – 9th November 2020 Adults and Health – 17th November 2020

15. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS - CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND CORPORATE SERVICES

The Committee received a verbal update from the Cabinet Member for Planning and Corporate Services around his portfolio, followed by a Q&A session with the Committee. Richard Grice - Director of Customers, Transformation and Resources, Maurice Richards – Principal Transport Planner, and Rob Krzyszowski – Interim Assistant Director, Planning, Building Standards & Sustainability were all present for this agenda item. The following key points were noted:

- a. The Cabinet Member advised that the Planning Policy team were undertaking the first stages of developing a new Local Plan and an initial consultation process had been started, which went beyond the minimum legal requirements. There were still two and a half weeks left on this initial phase of public consultation.
- b. Strategic Transport had received £860k from TfL for the implementation of three low traffic neighbourhood schemes in Bruce Grove, St Ann's and Bounds Green. £5.1m of capital budget had also been allocated for this area.
- c. The Council's apprenticeship scheme was due to be launched during the 8-12 February, which was National Apprenticeship Week.
- d. The Fairness Commission Implementation Plan was being developed, following the Cabinet meeting March where the recommendations of the commission were formally agreed. The Cabinet Member noted that the implementation of this had unfortunately been delayed due to Covid-19.

The following was raised in discussion of this agenda item:

- a. In response to a question around what the engagement plan was for implementation of these schemes, the Cabinet Member advised that that the initial phase of consultation around the new Local Plan would be followed by subsequent consultation and engagement phases on both the draft and the final plans. The Cabinet Member acknowledged that there had been some high profile reports in the media around problems with other borough's low traffic neighbourhoods schemes and advised that there had been significant lessons learned from some of these perceived mistakes. Government guidance had also changed on these schemes so that the Council was now required to consult widely before implementing such schemes. Officers added that there would be a widespread 3 stage engagement process with residents around the LTN schemes, including working closely with the emergency services and a six month consultation once the schemes had been put in place.
- b. In response to a question, the Cabinet Member acknowledged that the progress of the Fairness Commission had been impacted by Covid-19 but advised that this work was still progressing and that he was particularly keen to underline the socio-economic considerations of the work the commission was

undertaking, especially given the impact of Covid-19. Officers advised that they the administration was particularly keen that this wasn't just another consultation process and that there would be a number of stages and that a communication and engagement plan was in place. A number of virtual engagement sessions were taking place with stakeholders and work had been undertaken with the RNIB and the Bridget Renewal Trust to ensure that the consultation documents were as accessible as possible and that as wide a community network as possible could be utilised.

- c. In relation to a follow up question, officers acknowledged that consideration had been given to minority languages and there would be a process in place to direct people to translations of the documents.
- d. In response to a question, the Cabinet Member advised that the organisation was paying into the apprenticeship levy but did not have an apprenticeship scheme at present, which meant that the organisation could only spend the money on training and that a training programme needed to be in place to fully utilise this. It was envisaged that there would be an uptake in the number of apprentices taken on and that there would be a significant training programme in place that could also be used by the existing workforce.
- e. The Committee were advised that the plan was that all new starters at grades SC1-SC6 would start an apprenticeship and that the training on offer would go up to degree level. It was estimated that up to 75% of staff could be involved in the scheme. There was also going to be a focus on developing a local graduate scheme, which would help the organisation to focus recruitment on local people.
- f. In relation to Reynardson's Court and the administration's general position on demolition of Council homes, the Cabinet Member advised that this was outside of his portfolio, but that his own position was that he would only support demolition in instances where they were rebuilt at better and that the homes were secure tenancies at council rents. The Cabinet Member also set out that the delivery of 1000 new Council homes was one of the administration's key manifesto commitment.
- g. The Committee noted concerns around Love Lane and the fact that this was listed for demolition in the Local Plan. The Committee sought assurances around the new affordability target of 50% on the London Plan and how the administration was going to meet this target. In response, the Cabinet Member advised that the site allocations were set out within the existing Local Plan, which he couldn't change but the process had begun of gathering evidence for the new Local Plan albeit this would take time. Part of this process was around gathering evidence of what was needed in the borough as well viability, which reflected what was actually possible. Officers advised that viability versus affordability was a key consideration in relation to the evidence gathering process. The viability threshold within the Mayor's target was 35%.
- h. In relation to concerns around increased emphasis on co-living schemes, the Committee was advised that the new Local Plan had a section on this and so engagement was being sought on the issue.
- i. In relation to concerns around the number of developments coming forward with three bedrooms plus, Cllr Connor agreed to pick this up with Cllr White and Cllr Ibrahim outside of the meeting.
- j. In response to a question, Cllr Chandwani advised that mobile enforcement cameras were being used for moving traffic offences as well as fly-tipping and

the ultimate goal was to ensure compliance rather than generate revenue. It was suggested that as they were fairly new, there was little data available in relation to their effectiveness in reducing flytipping but they had been incredibly effective at ensuring compliance for moving traffic violations in Alexandra Ward.

RESOLVED

Noted.

16. SCRUTINY OF THE 2021/22 DRAFT BUDGET / 5 YEAR MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (2021/22-2025/26) - YOUR COUNCIL

The Committee received a report which set out the Council's 2021/22 Draft Budget / 5-year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2021/22 – 2025/26 along with savings proposals relating to the Your Council priority. Attached to the covering report were the draft MTFS paper that went to Cabinet in December, the capital bids relating to Your Council, the new savings proposals within Your Council and the pre-agreed savings for Your Council. The report was introduced by Richard Grice, Director of Customers, Transformation and Resources as set out in the agenda pack at pages 57-160. Also present for this item were: Frances Palopoli, Head of Corporate Financial Strategy & Monitoring; Andy Briggs, Assistant Director for Corporate & Customer Services; Paul Dooley, Chief Information Officer and Christine Addison, Assistant Director for Capital Projects and Property. Also present were the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Licensing and the Cabinet Member for Transformation and Public Realm Investment.

The following was raised in the discussion of this item:

- a. In response to a question, the Committee was advised that the total revenue savings within Your Council, totalled £4m from a circa £30m budget in total. However, some of the items within Your Council were delivered by services across the Council and so that £30m total was slightly misleading.
- b. In response to a question around the service growth adjustment figure on page 83 of the agenda pack, officers advised that this related to a small figure being put into the budget for 2022-23 which was to cover the ongoing cost of the Civica Mid-call solution which facilitated online payments being taken in a secure way. There was also £300k allocated for a new welfare assistance fund and £67k into HR to recruit local people. In response to a follow-up question, officers advised that this was not a reallocation of budgets from Your Council, it came from elsewhere across the organisation.
- c. In response to a question, officers advised that Digital Together was a programme of work to enable the Council to streamline processes to help it carry out the work it undertook. This included, for example, the digitising and automation of processes and effectively modernising the work of the organisation. Officers advised that they had a high level of confidence that the savings set out in the report could be achieved and that significant inroads had been made already in the planning of this programme, which had built on the knowledge and lessons from the Customer First programme.
- d. The Committee sought clarification around the finance savings put forward at the February Cabinet meeting and queried whether there were any job losses involved and whether these had already gone through. Officers advised that

- these were restructure savings that predominantly related to vacancies and that these savings had been delivered. The Committee sought clarification around the number of posts involved. Officers agreed to provide a written response on this. (Action: Richard Grice).
- e. In relation to the previous saving YC06 in relation to a £365k saving in Libraries, the Committee expressed a degree of anxiety about whether this could realistically be achieved, particularly in light of the impact of Covid on libraries. In response officers advised that libraries had moved portfolio area since last year's budget but to the best of their knowledge this saving was based around better utilisation of space and activities in libraries to generate income growth. Officers agreed to come back with a written response, including the extent to which these savings were deliverable in the current climate. (Action: Richard Grice).
- f. The Committee cautioned that removal of vacant posts could still result in additional stress and pressures on staff in the long-term which could have a significant impact on the quality and delivery of services.
- g. In response to further questions around the Digital Together Programme, the Cabinet Member for Transformation and Public Realm Improvement advised that this programme was around utilising technology and new ways of working to bring council back-office functions into the 21st century. The programme was cross-council and would be spread across all of the different services. The Cabinet Member clarified that it entailed a bottom-up process of encouraging staff to come forward with their own ideas and areas of best practice. It was suggested that the difference between this and what may have been tried previously was that there was now a team in place to coordinate this. The Committee was also advised that the programme was also looking at licences for software and apps that were no longer relevant and where savings could be made from getting rid of them.
- h. The Cabinet Member set out that the Digital Together Programme included a viability funnel for projects put forward and that 40 projects had been funnelled down to 18 that were being moved to the next stage of viability. These projects totalled £1.9m in savings and the programme was working towards a £3m target, but this was an iterative process over a three year programme.
- i. In response to concerns about the £3.2m capital investment required for the Digital Together programme, the Cabinet Member acknowledged that this was a significant investment but cautioned that this would be a one-off investment that would allow the organisation to make long term year-on-year savings. In relation a question around the risk attached to this programme, the Committee was advised that monthly programme meetings were undertaken and, as with any programme of this size, adjustments would be made as the programme developed. It was anticipated that as quarterly reviews were undertaken projects under the programme would be either on target or below target.
- j. In response to a question around staff reductions involved in the programme, the Cabinet Member outlined that there was a worst case scenario of 30 post reductions across the Council but that no staff were at risk yet. The Cabinet Member also cautioned that the FOBO programme set out a worst case scenario of 110 job losses, but it ended up at around 50 reductions with no compulsory redundancies.
- k. The Committee requested that the quarterly reviews of the Digital Together Programme were brought back to the Committee to provide ongoing monitoring

- of the programme. Officers agreed to bring the reviews back to OSC as regular update. It was queried whether this could be adapted into a rolling programme of projects in order to help facilitate effective scrutiny. (Action: Richard Grice).
- In response to a question, the Committee was advised that the term unidentified savings reflected the budget gap at a particular point in time i.e. the gap between the amount of money the organisation thought it would need to cover expenditure for a particular budget area and the amount of money currently allocated to that budget. Table 7.3 of the report reflected the projected budget gap as of February 2020 and was included in the report to provide context.
- m. The Chair of Budget Scrutiny commented that she would like to see a recommendation around ensuring clarity and ease of understanding in future budget scrutiny reports, highlighting the need for people without a finance background to be able to access and understand the information contained within it. The Chair of Budget Scrutiny also commented that she would like to see future budget scrutiny reports clearly separate out each of the priority areas form the main body of information. This should be placed into Revenue and Capital sections with the MTFS table including the RAG ratings and the savings slippage (as was provided to Cabinet).
- n. In relation to saving YC101 Finance savings, the Committee sought clarification around the savings figure involved and the extent to which the level of income generation involved was realistic. In response, officers advised that the saving of £202k related to all four areas and not just treasury management. The figure of £112k given was an estimate of additional income based on trend analysis and officers commented that this was a prudent estimate of the level of additional income.
- o. In relation to saving YC104 Highway Searches, officers advised that the income generation level was estimated at between £24k-£90k based on a variable rate for each search undertaken, depending on how quickly the turnaround time was. The team undertook 300 searches last year and based on the lower charge for a slower turnaround of 3-4 days, this would generate £24k but 300 searches at the higher charge for turning around the search in 4 hours would generate £90k. The savings figure of £24k was based on a prudent assumption that all searches would be at the lowest level.
- p. In relation to saving YC105 Digital Services Establishment Savings, the Committee sought clarification as to whether there was a cost associated with this saving. In response, officers advised that there were no costs involved and that the establishment of Digital Services was to replace the shared service with Islington and Camden. The saving specifically related to the holding open of four vacant posts which would generate £250k in MTFS savings.
- q. In relation to saving YC106 Reduction in Legal Services Support, the Committee sought clarification about the nature of the posts involved and whether the cost of utilising a private barrister would outweigh any savings generated. In response, officers advised that this related to the reduction of four administrative posts, three of which were vacant. The saving related to learning lessons about how the Legal team operated during the pandemic and utilising this to generate savings. The Committee was advised that the barrister was on a framework contract which allowed the authority to access additional

- support at preferential rates and that any additional costs would be limited and did not related to the work of the administrative posts.
- r. The Committee suggested that they would like to put forward a recommendation in relation to YC106 as they were concerned that reductions in the legal team would seriously impact their ability to support statutory services such as health and social care. (Clerk to note).
- s. In relation to a question on saving YC109 HR Savings, officers advised that this saving related to the permanent recruitment of staff being brought back in house and the fee previously paid to Hays per recruitment would be used to establish a permanent internal recruitment team, generating ongoing savings. The temporary recruitment contract with Hays had been re-contracted and savings from this would be used to fund the apprenticeship scheme for example. The saving was formulated through a top slicing of the recruitment costs for both temporary and permanent recruitment.
- t. The Committee set out concerns with current provision of temporary or agency social workers and welcomed the opportunity to bring recruitment of these back internally. Officers acknowledged these concerns and set out that this was a problem felt across local government. The Director of Customers, Transformation and Resources agreed to write to the Committee to supply figures for the number of agency staff employed within Children's Services. The Committee also requested figures for the per-day rate of consultancy staff. (Action: Richard Grice).
- u. YC 109 In response to a question around what the £400K investment was for, officers advised that this was for project work and consultancy work that the organisation did not have the expertise to undertake. The Committee sought further clarity around what percentage of the £400k related to the cost of software and how much related to consultancy. The Committee also requested figures on the per-day rate for this consultancy. Officers agreed to come back with a response. (Action Richard Grice/Paul Dooley).
- v. In response to a question around whether there was an audit of how much money was spent on interim and agency staff and whether this was regularly monitored, officers advised that this was something that the organisation kept challenging however some areas of recruitment were notoriously difficult to recruit to across local government. The Director of Transformation and Resources advised that the organisation had made good progress on consultancy staff at senior levels and that this was down to single figures. This Committee was advised that this information was regularly reported up to Staffing and Remuneration Committee and was publicly available.
- w. In relation to the pre-agreed saving YC07 Extension of Customer First Approach, officers clarified that this project had successfully delivered around £2.5m of savings and that there was a further £1m identified as a delayed saving that will be going into next year's budget along with a further £200k flowing into 2022/23.
- x. In relation to the pre-agreed savings, The Director of Transformation & Resources advised that he had a high level of confidence that these savings would be achieved and that the RAG status was accurate as officers had undertaken significant amounts of work in monitoring and pushing forward these savings.
- y. In response to a request for further details on the capital investment allocated to asset management and the Civic Centre, officers advised that this equated

- to around £40m of investment spread over the five year period. £21.3m was allocated to the Civic Centre refurbishment and £18.4m for asset management. Asset management related to corporate estate expenditure that was non-school related for compliance and maintenance work, for example. It was noted that there was a significant backlog in maintenance work around the corporate estate which went back a long way. The Civic Centre is a self-financing business case and there were inherent savings that would be used to offset these costs.
- z. In response to a question, officers advised that the capital budget contained a £6.5m continency. There was also a responsiveness fund which was a pot of money that would be used to enable the Council to respond to in year request for match funding from external bodies.
- aa. The Committee requested a breakdown of the £33m allocated in the capital budget to schools. Officers agreed to provide a response in writing (Action: Christine Addison).
- bb. In response to a question around whether the allocation for the asset management of buildings included the commercial portfolio, officers responded that it did not, it also excluded housing.
- cc. The Committee enquired to what extent RPH could be made Covid-compliant, officers commented that a number of areas had been spent to improve the building and its useability, including upgrading the air-conditioning system, the lists and the boilers. However, the windows could not be made to open as it was a sealed air-conditioning system.
- dd. In relation to the £6.5m contingency and whether any of this related to the Civic Centre, it was noted that this was a completely separate capital budget allocation. Cabinet agreed to the works in December and the total cost was higher that the £21.3m set out in the capital budget as this allocation was for next year and work around feasibility and design had already started. There was a contingency built into the scheme, as there would be for any similar project. Officers agreed to feed back in writing what the contingency figure was (Action: Christine Addison).
- ee. The Committee noted concerns around capital slippage and suggested that any slippages in the capital budget would have a knock on effect on revenue budgets. The Committee noted that unlike the scrutiny panels who would have access to quarterly budget monitoring including the capital budget for their respective areas, OSC did not have the same oversight in relation to the Your Council Budget. The Chair of Budget Scrutiny commented that she would be discussing with the panel chairs on how OSC could maintain oversight of the Your Council revenue and capital budgets over the year. (Action: All OSC Members).
- ff. The Director of Transformation and Resources agreed that regular monitoring of the Your Council revenue and capital budgets was a sensible suggestion but noted that monitoring was made more difficult by budgets being held across different areas. The Director of Transformation and Resources agreed to give some further thought on how to best take this forward. (Action: Richard Grice).
- gg. In response to a question, officers acknowledged that the capital programme was significant and that within Your Council this equated to around £83m over fiver years, around £63m of which was in the three key areas outlined above.

- hh. The Committee requested further information within the Capital budget around which projects are being funded by the Council and which were self-financing, as these would have different risks attached to them and may have an impact on revenue budgets. The Director of Customers, Transformation and Resources agreed to provide this information via email. (Action: Richard Grice).
- ii. OSC requested that Asset Management be explained in greater detail in future Your Council budget reports and projects clearly identified.

RESOLVED

That the Committee considered and provided recommendations on the 2021/22 Draft Budget/MTFS 2021/22-2025/26 and proposals relating to Your Council.

17. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE

The Committee received a report which outlined the development of work plans for the Committee and its Panels for 2020-21 and beyond. The report was introduced by Rob Mack, Principal Scrutiny Officer.

It was agreed that the following Councillor's would be appointed to the Task & Finish Group on the Whittington proposals. Councillors Ahmet, Dogan, Connor, Brabazon, Das Neves, Da Costa, Palmer .

It was agreed that Rob Mack would circulate an email to cooptees to ascertain who would like to sit on the Task & Finish Group. If there were more than three people interested the Chair would make a decision. (Action: Rob Mack).

RESOLVED

- I. That the current work programmes for the main Committee and Scrutiny Panels at Appendix A of the report were noted and any amendments were agreed as appropriate.
- II. That the Task and Finish Panel set up to respond to proposals from Whittington Health regarding their estates and services be comprised of:
 - The Chair of the Committee;
 - The Chair plus two other Members from the Adults and Health and the Children and Young People's Scrutiny Panels; and
 - Three non-voting co-opted Members.

18. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

N/A

19. FUTURE MEETINGS

18 January 2021

15 March 2021

CHAIR: Councillor Peray Ahmet
Signed by Chair
Date